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KANSAS CITY AREA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) #G22-7038-31A 
KANSAS CITY AREA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (KCATA) ON-DEMAND TRANSIT SERVICES 

 
ADDENDUM #2 

 
Issue Date: October 25, 2022 
________________________________________________________________________________________________   
 
This Addendum is hereby made a part of the Request for Proposals and Project Documents to the same extent as if 
it were originally included therein and is intended to modify and/or interpret the bidding documents by additions, 
deletions, clarifications, or corrections.  The Contractor shall acknowledge receipt of this Addendum in their 
Proposal on the “Receipt of Addenda” form (herein attached) and shall include the form in Volume III, “Contractual.”   
________________________________________________________________________________________________   
 

CLARIFICATIONS 
 
Section 2.2.  The following is added to Section 2.2 

 
 “NTD Reporting.   Providers will be required to submit monthly and annual accident/safety reports in accordance 

with National Transit Database (NTD) reporting requirements.” 
 

PROPOSER QUESTIONS 
 
Scope of Services 
 
1. Q: What technology provider(s) does RideKC currently use?  
 
 A: Spare Labs is the current provider of RideKC Flex scheduling software.  The service is operated currently by 

KCATA.  
 
2. Q: Can KCATA identify the current transportation operator for RideKC?  
  
 A: RideKC is the regional brand for all transit services.  KCATA’s RideKC fixed route and KCATA’s RideKC Flex 

services are operated by KCATA personnel.  KCATA’s Freedom (paratransit) services are provided by a 
contractor under contract with KCATA.  RideKC transit services in Johnson County, Kansas and the City of 
Independence, Missouri’s intra city services are operated by contractors under contract to these 
communities.   

 
3. Q: KCATA reports driver and operator services, is KCATA open to non-dedicated services from TNCs to 

supplement dedicated service? 
 
 A: KCATA is open to proposals that include non-dedicated services to supplement dedicated services.  All such 

services would need to comply with all requirements in the RFP including branding and KPI compliance.  
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4. Q: Can KCATA clarify how this procurement relates to the current RideKC service (or not)? Is this meant to be a 
completely separate service or an expansion/modification of RideKC? If the latter, are there aspects of the 
current service that KCATA would like a new vendor to improve upon? 

 A: The intent of this service is to be complementary to the existing fixed-route, flex, and other services.  The 
addition of a more robust On-Demand Flex solution is to be viewed as an extension of existing services to 
better serve the community.  If there is one area where KCATA would like to see improvement it would be on 
how an on-demand solution will best integrate with the fixed-route network for longer trips.  

 
5. Q: Has there been any community consultation about the service and, if so, what are the results? 
 
 A:  There has not been a formal consultation process specifically about this flex service and RFP.  
 
6. Q: Can you confirm the specific languages that you are looking for? 
 
 A: The most common non-English spoke languages in the Kansas City area are Spanish, Chinese (Mandarin, 

Cantonese), Arabic, Vietnamese, and German.    
 
7. Q: Is the 20% W/MBE goal, a labor goal or out of the total contract value? 
 
 A: The MBE/WBE goal is based on the total contract value.  See Section 3.11.  
 
8. Q: With regard to the current services (if provided):  

a. Please confirm the number of shuttles currently used for service 
b. Please confirm the entity currently providing the shuttle service. 
d. Please confirm the age of the vehicles the entity currently providing shuttle services. 
e. Please confirm the current hourly rate the current provider is paying for shuttle services. 

 
 A: There is no “shuttle service” currently operated.  KCATA operates the RideKC Flex service.  Approximately 10 

vehicles are in service at any one time to provide this service.  
 
9: Q: Please confirm ADA requirements for vehicles (ramp, lift, etc.) 

 
A:  Vehicles deemed ADA accessible should have a ramp or lift for vehicle accessibility, and where applicable, 

have required tie downs or secure straps to ensure wheelchairs and other accessible devices can be safely 
securing during travel.  

 
10. Q: Please confirm if vehicles can be stored at the location or do we need to provide a location to store them. 
 
 A: There is currently not ample space at the KCATA location for storing of vehicles.  A new location or vehicle 

storage solution would need to be proposed by the Contractors.  
 
11. Q: Please confirm if an office area will be provided to the operator. 
 
 A: There is not office space available for operators at the KCATA facilities.  An office location or remote work 

solution would need to be proposed by the Contractors.  
 
12. Q: Please confirm if access to restrooms and/or break areas will be provided to drivers. 
 
 A: There are a very limited number of KCATA owned restroom locations throughout the service network and 

drivers of the On-Demand Flex service will have access to them.  However, most restroom locations for 
operators are at commercial businesses via agreement.  The decision of restroom locations and any 
agreements are the responsibility of the Contractor.  
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13. Q: Does KCATA envision the new on-demand service to fully replace the RideKC Flex service and its zones?  If so, 
could KCATA share how many vehicles they currently use for Flex Services?  

 
 A: This is to be new, additional on-demand service that is complementary to our current services. However, we 

also do not want to operate redundant flex services.  KCATA is open to proposals that address this 
redundancy  

 
14. Q: With regard to the RFP’s requirements for an electric fleet, will KCATA or the Contractor provide a charging 

infrastructure?  
 
 A: This will be the Contractor’s responsibility.  
 
15. Q: The RFP states that “the Contractor must provide a plan for providing reduced rates for specific rider groups 

as specified by the KCATA. The Contractor shall be responsible for verifying eligibility for discounted fares; as 
such, Contractors should provide a description of how they will verify eligibility for discounted fare types. This 
should include a plan and pricing for providing such a service.”  Can you please provide a list of current 
discounted fares the KCATA offers that you’d like to see extended to this microtransit service (e.g., specific 
discounts for students or senior citizens)? 

 
 A: KCATA’s current system is zero fare.  However, a fare is anticipated for the new flex service. The RFP instructs 

the respondents to describe the system they would provide to implement a discounted fare program and 
how it would be implemented and managed.  See Question 20 below.  

 
16. Q: The RFP states that contractors should coordinate and interface with RideKC apps, websites, and services. 

Can you please clarify which websites and services you are specifically referring to? 
 
 A: KCATA does not require, but would prefer Contractors to coordinate or interface with RideKC.org and Transit 

App.  The services in question for coordination would be any fixed-route, flex or other RideKC services that 
the on-demand service area/zones overlap.  

 
17. Q: Please provide minimum fleet vehicle specifications and passenger capacity. 
 
 A:  It is expected that Contractors provide a fleet that is clean and maintained in proper working order.  Vehicles 

should allow for multiple passenger trips and should be no smaller than a standard sedan or minivan.  
 
18. Q: Is the vehicle fleet required to be 100% ADA accessible? 
 
 A: The fleet should be able to provide ample ADA accessibility as to not limit or provide inferior service to 

persons with disabilities.  This requirement does not mean that every vehicle needs to be ADA accessible, but 
ensuring equality across the service to all persons, regardless of one’s ability, is something that the KCATA will 
monitor.  

 
19. Q: Are all drivers required to be in full compliance with 49 CFR part 655?  

 
A:  Yes.  

 
20. Q: Is KCATA responsible for qualifying riders that are entitled to reduced fares? If not, please explain the 

process. 
 
A: KCATA is currently operating a zero-fare system with the exception of RideKC Freedom On-Demand which has 

reduced fares for qualifying individuals. Currently, KCATA only monitors and approves reduced fares for older 
adults (65+) and persons with disabilities.  The process involves the applicant filling out an application 
verifying their age and their eligible condition.  For persons with disabilities, eligibility is renewed via the 
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application process every three years.  It is expected that the respondents include their approach on how 
they would handle this process for this flex service.  

 
21. Q: In the event the ATU organizes the contractor’s employees, is KCATA agreeable to adjusting the pricing to 

reflect any increased costs? 
 

A: Contract pricing is the responsibility of the Contractor.  However, KCATA is open to discussing adjustments 
that may be proposed by Contractors.  KCATA must review any pricing increases and approve before any 
contract changes.  

 
 
Proposal Submission 
 
1. Q: Section 3.10 of the RFP requests that Proposers print and segregate any proprietary information on different 

colored paper.  Given that the submission will be electronic, can KCATA confirm that simply separating 
proprietary information into a separate PDF document will suffice?  

 
 A: Financial statements and documents that are not an integral part of your technical proposal may be 

submitted separately.  If part of your technical proposal, KCATA will remove the color requirement and 
accept adding “PROPRIETARY” to the applicable pages as long as it is clearly visible.   

 
2. Q: Given the multidimensional nature expected of proposal responses, from service zone planning to describing 

the technology provider to detailing vehicle operations, can KCATA extend the page limit of proposals to 50 
pages? Or, if the 30-page limit remains, can proposals include an Appendix with visual graphs? 

 
 A: KCATA will keep the 30-page limit. Visual graphs, maps, manuals, certifications, or other exhibits requested 

by KCATA are excluded from the page count.  Provide a list of all appendices on the Table of Contents.   
 
 
Price Proposals  
 
1. Q: Please confirm the total anticipated annual billable hours. 
 
 A: At this time, the service is being evaluated to have revenue hours between 6:00am and 10:00pm, seven days 

per week.  There will be approximately ten holidays when service may operate at a reduced capacity or not 
operate at all.  Using an approximate 355 days of service at 16 hours per day, it expected that there will be 
5,680 service hours; at 10 vehicles that is 56,800 hours of service and at 30 vehicles that is 170,400 hours of 
service.  Please note, KCATA does plan to have schedule changes/mark ups quarterly and this service may 
have it’s service hours changed to better align with the fixed-route service hours.  

 
2. Q: Attachment C-1 (page 54) and Attachment C-2 (page 55) are identical. Is there supposed to be a different 

price proposal page? 
 
 A: Attachment C-1 requests pricing for 10 vehicles.  Attachment C-2 requests pricing for 30 vehicles.  
 
 
Evaluations 
 
1. Q: Can you provide scoring percentages for the three criteria listed in Section 4.6, “Proposal Evaluation 

Criteria”? 
 
 A: They are listed in the order of importance.  
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Contractual 
 
1. Q: With regard to termination rights, in the event that the contract is terminated by the client prior to the end of 

the term, will the client agree to pay any unamortized portion of capital purchases (the procured buses)? 
 
 A: KCATA is willing to consider this and invites proposers to submit proposed language regarding this.  
 
2. Q: With regard to termination rights, would the client grant the operator the right to terminate for the client’s 

breach and failure to cure within 10 days for a monetary breach or within 30 days for a non-monetary 
breach? 

 
 A: Proposers are instructed to review the sample contract that is provided in the RFP and submit any exceptions 

or requested changes to the terms and conditions in that agreement. A sample agreement in Word format is 
also available on the project’s FTP site for Proposer’s convenience in making edits.  

 
3. Q: With regard to fuel, to effectively protect the client and the operator against large fluctuations in fuel prices 

over which neither has control, would the client consider the establishment of a base price per-gallon 
adjustment mechanism for which fluctuations beyond a predetermined threshold (i.e. 15%) of the 
established per-gallon price allow for compensation back to the client (if fuel drops in price by 15%+) or 
additional compensation back to the operator (if fuel increases in price by 15%+)? 

 
 A: Proposals such as these regarding fuel pricing may be described in the Proposal for consideration by KCATA.  
 
4. Q: The RFP requires auto liability insurance limits of $2 million CSL, plus excess coverage of $1 million. Would 

KCATA consider lower limits that are consistent with their other contracts? 
 
 A: Liability limits of $1 million each occurrence/$2 million aggregate are acceptable if the Proposer provides $5 

million coverage for Excess Liability.  
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
 

• KCATA’s Advertising Policy 

• Updated Distribution List – Includes Pre-Proposal Conference Attendance.  This list is also available on the project 
FTP site 

• Updated Receipt of Addenda form 

 

 =====  END OF ADDENDUM  =====  
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KCATA’S ADVERTISING POLICY  
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DISTRIBUTION LIST WITH PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE ATTENDEES 
(List is available on project FTP site – see RFP for information) 
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RFP #G22-7038-21A: Receipt of Addenda Form   10/25/2022 

KANSAS CITY AREA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
 

Request For Proposals (RFP) #G22-7038-31A 
 

Kansas City Area Transportation Authority (KCATA) On-Demand Transit Services  
 

 
RECEIPT OF ADDENDA 

 
Proposers shall return this form when submitting their proposal as part of Volume III – Contractual.   The 
form shall be signed and dated by an authorized representative of the firm.  Failure to submit this form may 
deem the Bidder non-responsive.  As additional addenda are issued by, please notate date received below.  
________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
We hereby acknowledge that the Addenda noted below have been received and all information has been 
incorporated into the Invitation for Bid as required. 
 

 
 
Addendum #1 dated October 3, 2022  Date Received _______________________  
 
 
Addendum #2 dated October 25, 2022  Date Received ________________________  
 
 
Addendum #3 dated ________________   Date Received ________________________  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Company Name ___________________________________________      Date ____________________  
 
 
Address/City/State/Zip _________________________________________________________________  
 
 
Authorized Signature ______________________________  Printed Name ________________________ 
 
 
Telephone ___________________ Fax ____________________   Email __________________________ 
 

 


